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2. Petitioner filed her Petition only after Respondent indicated that he did nof
want to have any relationship with her, romantic or otherwise, after she performed oral
sex on him on May 20, 2023,

3. Prior to and following her filing, Petitioner repeatedly threatened to go to
the media about her “pregnancy™ and sent Respondent over 500 messages from differeng
phone numbers and email accounts. Judge Gialketsis found these messages and
Petitioner’s conduct to constitute harassment when she granted Respondent’s Injunction
Against Harassment on November 2, 2023 (Exhibit 1).

4. A sampling of Petitioner’s efforts to force Respondent into a relationship are
documented, in part, below:

a. Petitioner drafted a “contract™ for Respondent to sign that promised *for
a period of one week, while determining the best court [sic] of action for
their pregnancy, Party A and Party B, will exclusively explore a relationship
with “intention” [...] There is no obligation to engage in intercourse if
either Party is uncomfortable with the act.” (Exhibit 2 — Initial Responsé
Exhibit 1)

b. 6/28/23: “I have offered to give you control over the outcome of thé
pregnancy if we date exclusively and care for one another [...] I need to
know your decision tonight because I am getting rid of the abortion pills it
it’s a no or if I don’t hear back from you.” (Exhibit 3).

¢. Petitioner threatened to post on her public Instagram account that she

was pregnant with Respondent’s children if he did not “unblock™ her and
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said “if I can’t get you to do it, then maybe the public can convince you to.”

(Exhibit 4)
d. Petitioner contacted Respondent’s Father, ostensibly to convince him to
force his son, Respondent, to speak with her (“/ have not heard back from
Clayton and presume he has still blocked me.”) (Exhibit 5).
- 3 While this Family case was pending, Petitioner posted an “anonyvmous™ blog
post on Medium.com (which she later deleted) (Exhibit 6), contacted the news media, and
made multiple postings on Reddit.com claiming that she was pregnant with Respondent’s
children and including a Dropbox of doctored “medical™ documents. (Exhibit 7).
6. Despite two (2) fetal DNA tests indicating “little to no fetal DNA™ (and onée
(1) test lost in transit), Petitioner posted another Medium.com article identifying herself
as the “anonymous woman™ on December 8, 2023. In the article, Petitioner continues to
maintain she is pregnant with twins by Respondent. (Exhibit 8).
II. RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S PETITION TO ESTABLISH
7. Respondent affirmatively alleges that Petitioner is fabricating pregnancy, as well

as refusing a paternity test.

8. Respondent affirmatively alleges that neither pregnancy nor paternity has been
proven.

9. Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore venue is nog
relevant,

10. Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and since Petitioner i

unwilling to participate in a fourth patemnity test, paternity and the jurisdiction for determining
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its validity are unable to be proven/determined.

11.  Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and affirmatively allegeq
that Petitioner has neither proven pregnancy nor Respondent’s paternity.

12.  Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore there is na
legal parenthood to establish. Respondent alleges that only oral sex was performed between the
parties. Respondent further alleges that despite multiple requests to do so, Petitioner has refused
to take a paternity test. Petitioner responded to Respondent’s request via email stating that she
would only take a patemity test if the parties were to date exclusively (Exhibit 1). Petitioner
has threatened that she will write defamatory comments about this matter and release it to the
press (Exhibit 1). Petitioner has not established proof of patemity. Upon information and
belief, Petitioner suffers from mental health issues, and has caused Respondent to become
concerned that she is stalking him.

13.  Petitioner was not married at the time the minor child(ren) were bomn onf
conceived or at least 10 months before minor child(ren) were born or conceived.

14. Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore legal
decision-making and parenting time are not relevant.

15.  Respondent does not have any information regarding any court action in this statg
involving the minor child(ren) in question that could affect this case including court cases for}
enforcement and relating to domestic violence, protective orders, termination of parental rights
and adoptions.

16.  Respondent does not know a person other than Petitioner who has physical

custody or who claims legal decision-making (legal custody) or parenting time rights to any of

K78
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the minor children in question.

17. Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and thereforg
unreimbursed medical expenses incurred by Petitioner are not relevant.

18. Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and thereforg
unreimbursed other expenses are not relevant.

19. Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore the Parent
Information Program is not relevant.

20.  Respondent affirmatively alleges that domestic violence has not occurred in thig
relationship.

21.  Respondent affirmatively alleges that to his knowledge, neither party has been
convicted for a drug offense or driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol in the last twelve
(12) months.

22. Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore child
support orders for either party are not relevant.

23.  Respondent denies any allegations not specifically admitted herein.

24. Respondent is entitled to an adjudication of non-paternity. Petitioner’s
relentless and harassing behavior through the media will only continue if this matter is
not resolved by this Court finding Respondent is not the father of any alleged (and
believed to be fictitious) children.

25. Rule 26 sanctions are appropriate. Petitioner has violated Rule 26(b),
Arizona Rules of Family Law Procedure, and sanctions under Rule 26(c) are appropriate.

Petitioner filed this action for the purposes of harassing Respondent and forcing him to
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communicate with her. Despite Respondent’s repeated requests, Petitioner has provided
Respondent with no verified scientific evidence proving she is or was pregnant. Further,
after filing her Petition, Petitioner filed a “Motion to Communicate,” threatening to take
her “pregnancy™ to the media if Respondent did not communicate with her. This Motion
was denied. See Petitioner’s Motion to Communicate, filed August 8, 2023. Petitioner also
filed a *“Motion for Contempt,” which this Court also denied, which requested this Court
hold Respondent in contempt for not communicating with her. See Petitioner’s Motion
for Contempt filed August 23, 2023 (also denied by this Court). As such, Petitioner’s
Petition lacks evidentiary support, is being presented for the improper purpose, to harass
Respondent into communicating with her, and to cause Respondent to incur fees.

26. The requirement of Rule 9(c) have been met in so far as there has been
excessive communication regarding these issues, not limited to Petitioner’s recent
Medium article and the 500+ texts and emails that predicate Judge Gialketsis’ granting
of the Injunction Against Harassment.

27. Respondent is entitled to his reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred
based on Petitioner’s unreasonableness pursuant to A.R.S. § 25-324. Petitioner initiated
this filing based on a pregnancy that could not have occurred from oral sex. Despite this,
Petitioner repeatedly harassed Respondent, filed numerous bad faith pleadings with thig
Court in an effort to force Respondent to communicate with her, went to the media when
Respondent would not unblock her, and fabricated medical documents. Petitioner’s
behavior is the very definition of unreasonableness.

WHEREFORE, based upon all of the foregoing, Respondent respectfully requests the
8=
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Court enter the following Orders:

A. Issue an order declaring that Respondent is not the natural father of the mines

ehildren: any children born to Petitioner:

C.  Issue an Order compelling Ravgen Inc produce all records and documents
related to the fetal DNA testing in this matter:

D.  That this Court sanction Petitioner pursuant to Rule 26;

E. That this Court award Respondent his reasonable attorney’s fees and costs

based on Petitioner’s unreasonableness, pursuant to A.R.S. § 25-324;

G. For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper under thesq
circumstances.
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 26" day of January, 2024.

\VOOD\ICK LAW, PLLC
P /‘Z // ST e

Gregg R. Woodnick
[sabel Ranney
Attorneys for Respondent
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ORIGINAL of the foregoing e-filed
this 25" day of January, 2024 with:

Clerk of the Court
Maricopa County Superior Court

COPY of the foregoing document
delivered this same day to.

The Honorable Julie Mata
Maricopz County Supenor Court

COPY of the foregoing document
emailed this same day to:

Cory Keith
The Valley Law Group, PLLC

3101 N. Central Ave, Ste 1470
1 / 35012

Attorney for Petitioner
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VERIFICATION
], CLAYTON ECHARD, declare under penalty of perjury that I am the Respondent
in the above-captioned matter; that I have read the foregoing Amended Response To Petition
To Establish Paternity and I know of the contents thereof; that the foregoing is true and correct |
according to the best of my own knowledge, information and belief; and as to those things

stated upon information and belief, I believe them to be true.

01/25/2024

' "nrna!‘hld' Lian 26 2024 21-30 (e
|CLAYTON ECHARD Date
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COPY ELECTRONICALLY RECORDED CLERK OF THE SUPERIOR

COURT
“rn F LEDO L
TRIAL COURTS OF ARIZONA IN MARICOPA COUNTY n-z.zol:; 2:02 PM
Superior Court of Arizona/AZ007035J/0700 18380 N. 40th St Phoenix, AZ 85032
Monday-Friday 8:00-5:00 C. Curley

DEPUTY CLERK

Injunction Against Harassment
[ | Amended Order

Case No. JCV2023-053952 |
Court ORI No. AZ007035J
County

Maricopa

[ ] Sexual viclence—no service fee

PLAINTIFF PLAINTIFF IDENTIFIERS
[Cayton Echard |
First Midcle Last PRinuft's Date of Brth

And on behalf of any mincr family member or other Protected Person listed below:

V.
DEFENDANT DEFENDANT IDENTIFIERS
i T 1 [Ex [race |ooe i Wi
First Middie Last Femate |Uninown | | Unsinown | Unknown

EYES HAIR Arizona Prohibits Release of

DefendentPlaintiff Relationship. The Defendant and | are  [rereree e Social Security Numbers
dating or have dated and have not had a romantc or CRIVER'S LCENSE 8 |STATE EXP DATE
sexual relationship. -
Defendant’s Address:
e L:3:Fatimaad (s T et

CAUTION: [ | Weapon Alleged in Petiton

WARNINGS TO DEFENDANT: This injunction shall be enforced, even without registration, by the courts of any state, the
District of Columbia, any U.S. Territory, and may be enforced by Tribal Lands (18 U.S.C. § 2265). Crcssing state,
territorial or tribal boundaries to viciate this injunction may result in feceral imprisonment (18 U.S.C. § 2262).

Only the Court, in writing, can change this injunction,

This order is effective for one year from date of service.

THE COURT HEREBY FINDS THAT:

It has jurisdiction over the parties and subject matter.

| ] Defendant received actual notice of this Hearing and had an opportunity to participate.

THE COURT, finding reasonable evidence of harassment or that greatl o irreparable harm would result if this injunclicn is

not granted before Defendant can be heard in oppositicn, and there are specific facts attesting to efforts to give notice t©

Defendant cor there are reasons why notice should not be given, HEREBY ORDERS:
NO CRIMES. Defendant shall not commit any act of harassment (A.R.S. § 12-180%(T)) or sexual viclkence (AR.S. §
23.371) against Plaintiff or Protected Persons

[x] NO CONTACT. Defandart shal have no contact with Plaintiff excep! through attorneys, legal process, court hearings
and as checked: [ ] Phone [ ] Electronic (email. text, etc.) [ ] Mail [ ] Other:

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERS:

PROTECTED LOCATIONS. Defendant shall not go 1o or near Plaintifs or other Protected Person's:
[X] Resicence (confidential)

[ ] Workplace:
[ ]School:
[ ]Other:

[ 1 ARIZONA FIREARMS LAW. Under Arizona Rules of Protective Order Procedure Rule 25(g), the court finds that
Defendant poses a credible threat to the physical safety of Plaintiff or Protected Persons. Tharefora, Defendant shall
not possess, receive, or purchase firearms and shall surrender same within 24 hours of service to the Maricoga
County Sheriffs Office or other local law enforcement agency.

Cffective 2/24/2022 Page 1 of 2 Adopted by Admiaistrative Dircctive No. 2022-07



OTHER ORDERS:

The Court finds reasonable evidence of harassment of the Plaintiff by the Defendant or that great or irreparable harm
would result to the Plaintiff if the Injunction is not granted before the Defendant can be heard in opposition, and that there
are specific facts attesting to the efforts to give notice to the Defendant or that there are reasons why notice should not be
given. Defendant is not to have contact with Plaintiff or the protected party{ies] at any time by any means, including but
not limited to any in-person, physical, verbal, nonverbal, telephonic (text, email, apps), internet (social media, instant
messaging, apps) or third-party contact. Defendant shall not record by video or audio Plaintiff or the protected party[ies)
using any device, including but not limited to cell phones, cameras or other recording devices. Defendant shall not
approach Plaintiff or the protected party[ies] at their residence, workplace, school or vehicle. The Maricopa County
Superior Court does not give specific distance instructions in its injunctive orders. However, Plaintiff and or protected party
may make a report to law enforcement if Defendant is close encugh to cause concemn or make contact. Defendant shall
not be near Plaintiff and/or any protected party. Defendant shall not approach Plaintiff or a protected party in public

places,

11/2/2023 Cynthia Gialketsis
Date Judical Printed Name

e —— —___— _ _—— —— —_____ ________ _ ______2}
WARNING: This Is an official court order. If you disobey this order, you may be arrested and prosecuted for the
crime of interfering with judicial proceedings and any other crime you may have committed in disobeying this
order.

NOTICE: If you disagree with this injunction, you have the right o request a hearing, which will be held within 10 business
days after your written request has been filed in the court that issued this injunction. Violations of this injunction should be
reported to a law enforcement agency, not the court.

ADDITIONAL WARNINGS TO DEFENDANT: Nothing the plaintiff does can stop, change, or undo this Injunction
without the court's written approval. You must appear in court to ask a judge to change (modify) or dismiss
(quash) this Injunction.

-

Effective 9/24/2022 Page 2 of 2 Adopted by Administrative Directive No. 2022-07
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